Distribution Agreement

In presenting this thesis as a partial fulfillment of the requirements for a degree from Emory University, I hereby grant to Emory University and its agents the non-exclusive license to archive, make accessible, and display my thesis in whole or in part in all forms of media, now or hereafter now, including display on the World Wide Web. I understand that I may select some access restrictions as part of the online submission of this thesis. I retain all ownership rights to the copyright of the thesis. I also retain the right to use in future works (such as articles or books) all or part of this thesis.

Mengmei Li

April 9th, 2019

Design of meta-semantic analysis for automatic detection of Alzheimer's disease

by

Mengmei Li

Jinho D. Choi

 $\operatorname{Adviser}$

Computer Science Department

Jinho D. Choi

Adviser

James Nagy

Committee Member

Juliette Apkarian

Committee Member

2019

Design of meta-semantic analysis for automatic detection of Alzheimer's disease

By

Mengmei Li

Jinho D. Choi

Adviser

An abstract of

a thesis submitted to the Faculty of Emory College of Arts and Sciences

of Emory University in partial fulfillment

of the requirements of the degree of

Bachelor of Sciences with Honors

Computer Science Department

2019

Abstract

Design of meta-semantic analysis for automatic detection of Alzheimer's disease

By Mengmei Li

Nowadays, manual diagnosis of early stages of neurodegenerative disorders such as Alzheimer's disease (AD) has been a challenge. While current neuropsychological examinations often fail to provide satisfactory result in detecting Mild Cognitive Impairment (MC) and linguistic ability has shown to be a good indication of symptoms of AD, in this thesis I examine the semantic linguistic features resulting from verbal utterances of potential patients to distinguish healthy people and people with the disease. For this purpose, I perform statistical and machine learning analysis on a specific language transcript dataset, consisting of 50 healthy people and 50 probable MCIs. Experimental and statistical evaluations suggest that certain patterns and semantic features are effective in helping the clinical diagnosis of MCI. Design of meta-semantic analysis for automatic detection of Alzheimer's disease

By

Mengmei Li

Jinho D. Choi

Adviser

A thesis submitted to the Faculty of Emory College of Arts and Sciences

of Emory University in partial fulfillment

of the requirements of the degree of

Bachelor of Sciences with Honors

Computer Science Department

2019

Contents

1 Introduction 1	
1.1 Manual Diagnosis of AD	
1.2 Related Works	
1.3 Why Meta-Semantics	
1.3 Motivation and Objectives	
2 Background 6	
2.1 Significance of Linguistic Ability in Detecting AD 6	
2.2 Picture Description and Linguistic Ability	
8 Approach 8	
3.1 Dataset and Tools	
3.2 Annotation Guideline	

4 Analysis	42
4.1 Observational	42
4.2 Statistical	. 43
4.2.1 General Structure	. 44
4.2.2 Mention Weight	44
4.2.3 Mention Density	. 47
4.2.4 Predicate Analysis	48
4.2.5 Attribute Analysis	. 49
4.2.6 Xmod Analysis	51
4.2.7 Nmod Analysis	. 51
5 Limitations and Future Works	54

List of Figures

3.1	Circus Procession
3.2	Difference between versions
4.1	Control Group Number of Sentences 44
4.2	MCI Group Number of Sentences
4.3	Visualization
4.4	Mention Density of two groups

List of Tables

4.1	Entities that Control Group Mention more	45
4.2	Entities that Control Group Mention more	46
4.3	Predicate Analysis	49
4.4	Attribute Analysis.	50
4.5	Xmod Analysis.	51
4.6	Nmod Analysis.	51

Chapter 1

Introduction

1.1 Manual Diagnosis of AD

It is challenging to manually diagnose AD and other types of dementia has a challenging nature [1-4]. Current diagnosis tools include Montreal Cognitive Assessment (MoCA) screening tools which are composed of a series of questions and cognitive tests that assess different cognitive abilities [5]. Evans & Mitchell [6,7] demonstrate that it takes two years to use the cognitive tests to distinguish between the sub-types of dementia: Mild Cognitive Impairment (MCI) and AD. It is challenging for the cognitive tests to manually distinguish effectively between sub-types of dementia over a large population [7].

1.2 Related Works

Various Alzheimer's Disease screening methods using Natural Language Processing techniques have been proposed to date. Well-known studies were those conducted by Roark [8,9] which analyzed the lexical features and syntactic feature from transcripts of spoken narrative such as neuropsychological approaches [10] and automatic speech analysis approaches [11]. Some of them used automatic speech recognition [12]. Aramaki [13] specifically examined vocabulary size in speech transcription. Tanaka [14] proposed a novel approach using computer avatars. In addition, Orimaye [15] used machine learning algorithms to build diagnostic models using syntactic and lexical features, and Jarrold [16] used Linguistic Inquiry and Word Count (LIWC) for aided diagnosis of Dementia. Shibata [17] examined the usage of LIWC classified words in detecting AD. The values of *<*Social> in AD group were significantly lower than those in Healthy Control (HC) group. The values <Ipron>, <Verbs> and <Present> in AD group were also significantly larger than those in HC group. de Alba [18] enhanced the protocol of semantic features employed in that study by using Natural Language Processing systems such as FunGramKB [19,20,21,22,23]. This lexical-conceptual knowledge base

incorporated a series of feature descriptors for the definition of semantic knowledge with the inheritance and inference relations established among concepts in the ontology. It enriched the collection of semantic features used in the test of semantic attribute's production for the detection of semantic memory impairment [24]. Orimaye [25] combined n -grams with a reliable ML algorithm that learns several low-level linguistic features and identifies the probable AD group from the healthy elderly group. Hernndez [26] compared the computed performance and language functions of patients during standardized picture description tasks against a population with similar sociodemographic characteristics. They trained machine learning algorithms to evaluate the informativeness and pertinence of the descriptions of patients, as well as their lexical richness.

In terms of deep learning approaches, Guerrero [27] have developed a Bayesian networks (BN) for Cognitive Impairment (CI) diagnosis in mild and moderate AD patients by analyzing the oral production of semantic features. The BN causal model represents Lexical-semantic- conceptual deficit (LSCD) in certain semantic categories, both of living things (dog, pine, and apple) and non-living things (chair, car, and trousers), as symptoms of CI. Ramirez [28] proposed another Bayesian algorithm that classifies the sentimental polarity of the conversational phrases.

1.3 Why Meta-Semantics

Semantics sets out to specify the meanings of linguistic expressions. Metasemantics inquires into the nature of certain properties investigated by natural language semantics. It seeks a certain fundamental characterization of these properties. It asks whether and how these semantic properties might admit to some illuminating reduction to, or unification with, non-semantic properties [29]. Differences between semantics and meta-semantics can be illustrated by the following questions :

- 1. What is the content (semantic value) of s?
- 2. In virtue of what does s have the content(semantic value) that it has?

The first we would call a descriptive semantic question; the second one we would call a foundational question about semantic value.

In my thesis, I examine the meta-semantic features besides semantic features because meta-semantics tells about not only semantic values of words, but also how the words communicate with each other and their properties. For example, in the sentence "This is a sad elephant," in our meta-semantic annotation, we are able to retrieve much more information about "sad" than the fact that it is a noun modifier by its semantic role. "Sad" is also an attribute of the mention of "elephant." In addition, "sad" as a noun modifier has an attribute of "emotion" itself. In this way, we can obtain much richer information from the averagely 15-sentence transcripts and generate a more valuable training data set.

1.4 Motivation and Objectives

To automate the process of AD detection using semantic features of human language, I designed an Annotation Guideline that aims to extract valuable features which can distinguish MCI group and healthy controls in their description of a picture called "Circus Procession." I performed observational, statistical and machine learning analysis in extracting significant semantic features in distinguishing the two groups.

Chapter 2

Background

2.1 Significance of Linguistic Ability in

Detecting AD

[30,31] shows that linguistic ability captured from verbal utterances could indicate symptoms of AD. Neurodegenerative disorders (ND) deteriorate nerve cells that control cognitive, speech and language processes [31]. Language impairment in Alzheimer's disease initially affects verbal fluency and naming ,which require integrity of semantic concepts, before breaking down in other facets of the brain[32]. In particular, performance is impaired on tasks that require relatively complete, elaborate semantic representations but is preserved when the task requires only partial semantic representations consisting largely of shared features [33]. [34] investigated the significance of lexical and syntactic features from the verbal narratives of AD patients by performing several statistical tests based on 121 elderly participants comprising 60 subjects with AD and 61 healthy subjects. In their paper, immediate word repetitions, word revisions, and coordinated sentences could be used to distinguish those patients with AD from the healthy elderly group.

More recently, in [35] mAD (mild Alzheimer's disease) shows worse overall performance compared to the healthy controlss: less informative discourse, greater impairment in global coherence, greater modulization, and inferior narrative structure.

2.2 Picture Description and Linguistic Ability

[36] shows that picture description tasks are useful tools for detecting differences in a wide variety of language and communicative measures, because picture description is a constrained task that relies less on episodic memory and more on semantic knowledge and retrieval, within the cognitive demands of a communication context.

Chapter 3

Approach

I developed an Annotation Guideline that aims to extract valuable features which can distinguish MCI group and healthy controls in their description of a picture called 'Circus Procession'.

3.1 Dataset and Tools

Similar to Sylvester [25] which shows that the BDAE Cookie-Theft picture has been shown to be clinically relevant in identifying linguistic deficits in both Alzheimers disease and Aphasia patients, the Circus Procession picture (See figure 3.1.) has also been proved to have the same usage. Our dataset consists of audio recording of 50 MCI people and 50 healthy control people's response to several tasks including depiction of the picture circus procession and other language tasks (Natural Speech and Fluency Tasks)(See figure 3.2) These 100 individuals have similar MoCA scores, which means that normal cognitive tests can not distinguish them. We use the tool TEMI[38] to automate the process of transforming audio to texts and annotators manually check and fix to ensure the final quality of the transcripts. Texts are pre-processed in preparation for annotation. The tool BRAT[39] helps with visualization and enhance efficiency when we do the annotation.



Figure 3.1: Circus Procession



This room is like a patient examining room. It has the usual, a sink and examining table, and it's pretty drab and cold. It's got a sharps jar for disposing of needles and a trashcan. And uh, a stool for the physician to sit on and it's got a computer and a blood pressure monitor and a, an area where you can get gloves and drawers that probably contain needles or other medical equipment. The room could be brightened up with a few pictures because the walls are very plain with no decorations and it's pretty boring. And I'm finished.

```
#NA#
```

Uh, it's a very colorful picture, which looks like a poster that was painted in 1888 and that might be like an advertisement for a circus. There are two elephants in the picture. One of them is riding a tricycle, and they're both dressed in costumes. There's also a clown who's walking along. And then there are three, um, people dressed in kind of medieval garb that are look like they're carrying a flag in a procession. Um, the elephants are dressed in colorful outfits, one of them as striped pants, and the other one appears to have solid pants. And that both have jackets on.

Tan Tatar Tab. I'm tack Trade Taffy. Target Tassel, a tawdry taught. See, talent came tandem. Tapestry tape sale, salad sack, sad. I'm sadistic. Safe. Sage, same sanity. A special spacious sphere. Sponge stale steam standard. Chipmunk. Squirrel, rabbit mole, fol. Fox, Kod, um, possum wrapping. Lion Tiger. Cheetah, Leopard. Jacket for elephant does. They'll animal fisher. Martin. We're on fog. Um, um, shouldn't be anymore. Remember, blueberries, raspberry, blackberry, Jerry Peach, apple, pear, banana, fix, orange, tangerine, grapefruit, see things persimmon and stop.

3.2 Annotation Guideline

An annotation guideline is essential in the task of effectively generating significant semantic features for training data. Existed annotation guidelines such as PropBank [40] and Penn TreeBank [41] are heavily studied and referenced in making my annotation guideline. However, given the task is different, this annotation guideline is highly picture-oriented and I revised the guideline numerous times through the process of observation when doing the annotation and also statistical computation to add or eliminate features. Differences are big between the first version and the final version.See figure 3.3.



Figure 3.3: difference between versions

Annotation Guideline Contents

3.2.1 Introduction

3.2.1.1 Annotation Goals 3.2.1.2 Dataset and Tools

3.2.2 Entity Type Annotation Instructions

3.2.2.1 Common Mentions

3.2.2.1.1 Handling coreference

- 3.2.2.2 Other Mentions
- 3.2.2.3 Predicate
 - 3.2.2.3.1 Annotating 'Have' and 'Get'
- 3.2.2.4 Nmod
 - 3.2.2.4.1 Size
 - 3.2.2.4.2 Color
 - 3.2.2.4.3 Quantity
 - 3.2.2.4.4 Possessive

3.2.2.5 Xmod

- 3.2.2.5.1 Fuzzy
- 3.2.2.5.2 Certain
- 3.2.2.5.3 Emphasis
- 3.2.2.5.4 Negation
- $3.2.2.5.5~\mathrm{IMO}$

3.2.3 Entity Attribute Annotation Instructions

3.2.3.1 Abstract3.2.3.2 Emotion3.2.3.3 Opinion

3.2.4 Relation Annotation Instructions

3.2.4.0 Choosing Source and Target

3.2.4.1 Core Argument

3.2.4.1.1 Agent and Theme Relation

3.2.4.1.2 Dative Relation

3.2.4.1.3 Handling sentences in passive voice.

3.2.4.2 Thematic Roles

3.2.4.2.1 ADV

- 3.2.4.2.2 DIR
- 3.2.4.2.3 LOC
- 3.2.4.2.4 RMP
- 3.2.4.2.5 MNR
- 3.2.4.2.6 PRP
- 3.2.4.2.7 Omitted Thematic Roles
- 3.2.4.3 Noun
 - 3.2.4.3.1 with
 - 3.2.4.3.2 attribute
 - 3.2.4.3.3 part
 - 3.2.4.3.4 compound
 - 3.2.4.3.5 More
- 3.2.4.4 Others
 - 3.2.4.4.1 CASE
- 3.2.4.5 Relative Clauses and Passive Tense

3.2.5 Special Case Handling

3.2.1 Introduction

3.2.1.1 Annotation Goals

The annotation of the transcripts creates a valuable corpus, which can be used as training data for natural language processing research on diagnosis of the early stage of the disease. Training data, essentially, is what computer scientists and computational linguists can use to 'teach the computer' about different aspects of human language. In our annotation, a sentence is annotated to identify mentions of some real-world entities (objects) and their types, and a relation between two. Named entity recognition and information extraction tasks are accomplished. The main tasks of this annotation are: entity type labeling, entity attribute labeling and relation labeling.

For example, given the sentence '*There are two elephants in the picture*.' In BRAT tool we will see

Quant Nmod e Attr Elephants Xmod There are two happy elephants in the picture.

In raw form we will get the following tables. The three types of information (Entity, Entity Attribute if it has any, Relation) are mixed together in reality, the tables are shown for clearer visualization.

ENTITY TAG	ENTITY	SPAN	WORD
T1	Quantity	146 149	two
T2	Elephants	157 166	elephants
Т3	Xmod	167 169	in
Τ4	Picture	174 181	picture
Т5	Nmod	149 156	happy

RELATION TAG	RELATION	SOURCE	TARGET
R1	attr	Arg1:T2	Arg2:T1
R2	loc	Arg1:T2	Arg2:T4
R3	case	Arg1:T4	Arg2:T3
R4	attr	Arg1:T2	Arg2:T5

ATTRIBUTION TAG	ATTRIBUTION	SUBJECT
A1	Emotion	Т5

3.2.2 Entity Type Annotation

Instructions

Entities are word or chunk of words that have semantic roles within a text. Function words, auxiliary verbs and conjunction words are not annotated as entities. We have four classes of entities in our annotation---Mentions, Predicates, Noun modifiers and Adverbial-modifiers. We do not annotate entities that are unrelated to the picture itself. Subjective deviations, imaginations made by the narrator from the mentions in the pictures are not annotated as well. e.g.: *The three men in the middle remind me of the three musketeers*. Here 'the three musketeer' are not annotated.

3.2.2.1 Mentions

Mentions are real life objects appeared in the picture, commonly noun phrases. We omit articles in our annotation. Mentions are classified into two general types---common and other.

3.2.2.1.1 Common Mentions

Common mentions are objects that constantly appear in each transcript. We came up with a list of common mentions based on our observation of the transcripts.

Descriptions of the picture in general:

- Picture, Background, Border, Copyright, Parade, Picture, Shadow, Title
- General
 Background
 Border
 Copyright
 Parade
 Picture
 Shadow
 Title

The way of annotating 'Copyright' and 'Title' : They do not refer to exactly the word '*copyright*' or 'Title' in the text. Instead, a whole sentence, a clause,

or a couple of words can all be annotated as 'copyright'or 'Title'.

Below are different examples of 'copyright' or 'Title'

Copyright Uh , it 's copyrighted from 1888 , and it 's by Mclaughlin brothers in New York .

Copyright It 's called McLaughlin Brothers in New York .

, it 's copyrighted in 1888 by McLaughlin Brothers in New York ,

Title

, $\$ The Circus Procession $\$ is the name of the poster .

at the top are written the circus procession .

Mentions related to both elephants:

• Elephants, Costume, Hats

Elephants

Mentions related to the left elephant:

• Elephant_left, Tricycle, Jacket, Beanie, Collar, Head, Tie, Pants, Trunk

Elephant_L
Tricycle
Jacket
Beanie
Collar
EL_Head
EL_Tie
EL_Pants
EL_Trunk

Mentions related to the right elephant:

• Elephant_right, Fedora, Coat, Vest, Cane, Fan, Glasses, Head, Collar,

Pants, Tie, Hand, Feet, Trunk

🗆 🔵 Elephant_R	
Fedora	
Coat	
Vest	
Cane	
🔵 Fan	
Glasses	
ER_Head	
ER_Collar	
ER_Pants	
ER_Tie	
ER_Hand	
ER_Feet	
ER_Trunk	
ER_Hanky	
-	

Mentions related to men:

• Men, Man in the left, Man in the middle, Man in the right, Hat, Costume,

Plume, Flag, Cross, Boots, Sword



Mentions related to the clown:

• Clown, Ruffle, Face, Hair, Head, Suit, Pants, Shoes

E Clown	
Ruffle	
CL_Face	
CL_Hair	
CL_Head	
CL_Suit	
CL_Pants	
CL_Shoes	

3.2.2.1.2 Other Mentions

Mentions that are not categorized into the above classes are annotated as

'Mention'.



Example for not common mentions:

stripe, umbrella

3.2.2.1.3 Handling coreference

Coreference occurs when two or more expressions in the text refer to the same

person or thing. Example: hats with feathers on them

> Here 'hats' and 'them' are co-referenced.

Correct way of annotating this is

E_Hats Mention E_Hats Hats with feathers on them.

3.2.2.1.4 Handling misspelling and wrong expression

We still annotate the misspelling words or wrong expressions as long as we can identify what the narrator is trying to refer from the context.

e.g. These are all annotated as 'Title'.

circus profession the circus profession procession The Circus Procession the circus procession

If the mention in the text refer to the same thing in the common mentions list above and only uses a different word expression, we annotate them as common mention.

minstrels, soldiers > men

bicycle > tricycle

 $balloon > \mathrm{fan}$

Some rare examples include big 'slip of the tongue' of the narrator. For example, the narrator describes the left elephant for two sentences and suddenly the subjects of the rest of the passage all change to 'the left monkey'. In this case we annotate monkey as 'elephant_l'.

3.2.2.3 Predicate

Predicate is the part of a sentence that tells what the subject does. We only annotate one word which is usually the verb. We omit the auxiliary verbs (am, is, are). One type of predicates we pay special attention to is **Motion**, which usually conveys the mention is performing some actions rather than a static state of itself.



Examples of motion predicates:

hold, carry, stand, march, ride, walk, go, wave, peddle, operate, drive, follow, dance

Examples of other predicates:

wear, dressed

Light verb usage (e.g. *take a shower, have a drink*) where predicates appear as a clause is treated as a whole.

3.2.2.3.1 Annotating 'have' and 'get;

We do not annotate 'have' and 'get' in the cases where it refers that a mention is wearing/dressed in something or own some decorations. Example where we annotate 'have':

have a hard time, have the tricycle move

I originally annotated 'have' as a common predicate, however, I observed that most 'have' and 'get' appeared in a context when it referred to wearing something or own some ornaments, and 'have' actually had the most appearance among the predicates in both control group and group with AD. This caused confusion when I did statistical computation of the predicates. So I decided to separate 'have' and other predicates which give specific information on what the object is doing. See 4.3.1 'With' relation.

3.2.2.4 Nmod

a modifier is an optional element in phrase structure or clause structure [21]. It modifies another entity in the sentence and can be removed without affecting the grammar of the sentence. Nmod is the group of adjective noun modifiers. Most common types of Nmod appeared in the transcripts are **Color / Size / Quantity / Possessive**.

🖯 🔘 <u>N</u> mod	
Si <u>z</u> e	
<u>Color</u>	
Quantity	
Possessive	

$\mathbf{Color}:$

red, yellow

Size:

large, small

$\mathbf{Quantity}:$

one, two, a bouquet of, a group of, a great deal of

Possessive:

Used with nouns referring to mentions, and shows a relationship of belonging.

his

Sometimes compound nouns can function as modifier as well.

e.g. a polka dot dress

> Here 'polka dot' is Nmod.

Nmods that do not belong to any of these four categories are annotated as 'Nmod'

e.g. striped pant, a variety of characters, diamond shape pattern, side leg

> Here 'striped', 'a variety of', 'diamond shape', 'side' are Nmods.

3.2.2.5 Xmod

Xmod is the class of any other types of modifiers including adverbials. Xmod modifies verbs and also nouns. In addition, all of the prepositions are considered as Xmod. We have four special classes of adverbials that we are interested in . Furgue (Contain (Free basis (Normation (IMO)

interested in : Fuzzy/ Certain/Emphasis/Negation/IMO

Fuzzy:

probably, likely, ,possibly, it could be, believable, credible

Certain:

Must, doubtlessly, surely, certainly, indubitably, decisively

Emphasis:

Actually, exactly, very, clearly, really, definitely, absolutely, pretty

Negation :

don't, not

IMO (In my opinion.):

I guess, i am assuming, i think, what i would like, is supposed to
3.2.3 Entity Attribute Annotation

Instruction

Entity attributes are attributes which we assign to the entities in Chapter 2.

There can be a lot of attributes, however, in our annotation we only define the

following attribute types: Abstract, Emotion, Opinion.

Entity attributes			
Abstract	Emotion)

3.2.3.1 Abstract

Different from what abstract nouns typically imply in linguistics, the 'abstract'

attribute here conveys a sense of unclear and ambiguous. Examples are:

something, one, those type of

If we got information about this abstract mention from its context, we do not attach the 'abstract' attribute, for example,

One elephant is riding the tricycle and the other one is walking behind him.

> Here 'one elephant' is annotated as the known mention 'Elephant_R', without attribute 'abstract'.

If we don't get any information about the mention from the context, for example The clown is holding something in the hand.

> Here 'something' is annotated as an unknown mention, with attribute 'abstract'.

Colors can also have abstract attribute when it refers to the clothes, for instance

the elephant with blue on

> Here 'blue' has attribute 'Abstract'.

3.2.3.2 Emotion

Emotion attributes generally describes modifiers that are highly subjective and express emotional feelings of the narrator on the object he describes. Examples: sad, cruel, painful, happy

3.2.3.3 Opinion

Opinions are a more generalized class than emotion words.

1. subjective adjectives or nouns

Examples of adjectives: fancy, nice, bored, beautiful, normal looking, different

Examples of nouns: the baby elephant, the father elephant

> Here 'baby' and 'father' are 'Opinion' Nmods.

2. descriptive clauses that contain the word "like"

dressed up in a human, dressed up like a millionaire

> Here human (millionaire) is opinion.

3. sentences with hint words at the front

In my experience, as far as i can see, it is obvious that

3.2.4 Relation Annotation Instructions

An relation takes place between two entities when one entity has an semantic role over the other. We annotate every possible relation within a sentence. We do not annotate relations across the sentences.

3.2.4.0 Choosing Source and Target Arguments

Similar to PropBank Annotation Guideline[19], source arguments are the subjects of transitive verbs and a class of intransitive verbs called unergatives. Semantically, external arguments have what Dowty (1991) called Proto-Agent properties, such as:

- 1. Volitional involvement in the event or state
- 2. Causing an event or change of state in another participant
- 3. Movement relative to the position of another participant (Dowty, 1991)

Target arguments are the objects of transitive verbs and the subjects of intransitive verbs called unaccusatives. These arguments have Proto-Patient properties, which means that these arguments:

- 1. Undergo change of state
- 2. Are causally affected by another participant
- 3. Are stationary relative to movement of another participant (Dowty, 1991)

3.2.4.1 Core Argument

An argument is an expression that helps complete the meaning of a predicate [22]. Subject and object arguments are known as core arguments. This relation usually takes place between Mention – Predicate – Mention (- Mention) By [23], In languages that have morphological case, the arguments of a predicate must appear with the correct case markings (e.g. nominative, accusative, dative, genitive, etc.) imposed on them by their predicate. The semantic arguments of the predicate, in contrast, remain consistent, e.g. In our annotation, we treat all of the arguments as semantic argument.

Jack is liked by Jill.

Jill's liking Jack

Jack's being liked by Jill

the liking of Jack by Jill

Jill's like for Jack

3.2.4.1.1 Agent and Theme Relation

Agents are usually the subject of a transitive, ditransitive, or unergative verb.

Themes are mostly the direct object of a transitive or ditransitive verb.

e.g. I see the elephant riding the bike.

Elephant_L	-agent Motion	-theme	Tricycle
I see elephant	riding	the	bicycle .

3.2.4.1.2 Dative Relation

Besides normal agent and theme, the verb has another indirect object.

e.g. I gave him a book.



3.2.4.1.3 Handling sentences in passive voice

Because our annotation emphasizes on semantic features rather than syntax features, the choices of voices should not change the way of annotation. We still keep the same source and target based on its semantic meaning.

e.g. The photo was taken in early 1900s.

3.2.4.2 Thematic Roles

Thematic relations, also known as semantic roles, are the various roles that a noun phrase may play with respect to the action or state described by a governing verb, commonly the sentence's main verb. A list of the major thematic relations can be found at [24]. In our annotation, we select some thematic relations from the list.

3.2.4.2.1 (DIR)Directional

Directional relations show motion along some path, where the action is directed towards

e.g. step forward, walk along

Motion	-dir-Case	Motion	dir-Case
step	forward,	walk	along

3.2.4.2.2 (LOC)Locative

Locative relations indicate where some action takes place. Both physical location and abstract locations are marked as locative. e.g. walking behind him



e.g. One clown behind it

Quant		Elephant_L
l one	clown behind	it .

3.2.4.2.3 (TMP)Temporal

Temporal words show when an action takes place. Also included in this

category are adverbs of frequency: always, often, adverbs of duration: for a

year.

e.g. poster from the way back then

Picture Xmod

e.g. memories of circus days gone back



e.g. soldiers from maybe Robin Hood period

Nmod

soldiers or some sort from maybe Robin Hood period

3.2.4.2.4 (MNR)Manner

Manner relations indicate how an action is performed.

e.g. feet up in the air

Ment Mont Xmod

e.g. mouth open

Ment Mont Xmod

3.2.4.2.5 (PRP)Purpose

Explains the motivation for some action. Clauses beginning with 'for', 'in order

to' and 'so that' are common purpose clause.

e.g. advertisement for a circus

advertisement for a circus

e.g. trying to ride

Motion Prp- Motion ride

3.2.4.2.6 (ADV)Adverbial

Usually found between 'Xmod and predicates' or 'Xmod and Nmod' or 'Xmod

and Mention' to complete the modify relation

e.g. not look too happy actually

ttr Nmod e	-adv Certain
n't look too ha	appy actually
e.g. very cold	orful
	Nmod o olorful
e.g. the fan p	probably

Fan adv Fuzzy

3.2.4.2.7 Omitted Thematic Roles

Some thematic roles that we included in our early versions of the guideline contain GOL(Goal), CAU (Causal), MOD (Modal). Either they can be replaced with other thematic role relations or they don't contribute much in the statistical analysis. In the circumstances that some of them appear too few times, it will cause bias in performing linear regression.

3.2.4.3 Noun

The Noun Relation takes place between Mention - Mention / Nmod.

3.2.4.3.1 'With' relation

Describe the relationship between a mention and clothes he wears or ornaments he owns. e.g. one's got a cane



e.g. elephant has a blue jacket

V		attr
Elephant_L	Color	Jacket
s elephant has a	a blue	jacket
s elephant has a	Diue	јаске

3.2.4.3.2 'Attribute' relation

Describe the relationship between a mention and his modifiers.



3.2.4.3.3 'Part' relation

Describe the relationship between two mentions when one mention adheres to,

grows on, is part of the other.

e.g. cross on the flag



e.g. fan with flowers

	-part	
Fan	Color	Mention
fan with	red	flowers

e.g. feathers in hats



3.2.4.3.4 'More' relation

We say there is a 'more' relation when a mention repeatedly occurs in one sentence, usually adding more information or serving as a correction to the mention.

e.g. people who must be women



e.g. a fan, a fanning fan

Fan ^{more}Fan a fan , a fanning fan .

e.g. a striped tie, excuse me, a Polka dot tie

-with more attr attr Nmod ER_Tie ER_Tie Nmod striped tie on , or excuse me , a Polka dot tie

3.2.4.4 Others

3.2.4.4.1 Case

Describe the relationship of the Xmod and mention.

e.g. behind an elephant

 Xmod
 Case
 Elephant_L

 behind
 an
 elephant

e.g. on a bicycle



e.g. on the top of his head



3.2.5 Special Cases Handling

1. Treat compound nouns as a whole mention

polka dot, straw hat, face makeup

2. We do not annotate anything that is not related to the picture.

3. When a sentence appears as incomplete, we only annotate the 'Mention' in

the sentence.

4. Way of handling relative clauses, adverbial clauses:

We disregard the connection words (which, that), treat the clause as a

separate sentence with the same object, and annotate the relations as usual.

e.g. I was standing there, waiting for the bus.



5. Disregard anything after 'I don't know..', 'I cannot describe...'

Chapter 4

Analysis

After finishing the annotation task of 100 transcripts (50 healthy controls and 50 MCI), I was eager to find out if there were any valuable meta-semantic features that could effectively distinguish the two groups. My analysis was done in two steps; first, I did observational analysis on the annotation and then statistical analysis including count, linear regression and density analysis to validate my observational conjectures and obtain a systematical overview of the data.

4.1 Observational Analysis

• Number of sentences uttered in the one-minute limit: the MCI group on average speaks fewer sentences than that of the healthy control group. gives out more than 20 sentences, which means that their speech is disjointed and they like to use more pronouns.



Figure 4.1 Control Group Number of Sentences



Figure 4.2 MCI Group Number of Sentences

4.2.2 Mention Weight

A linear regression analysis is performed on all the entities to find which entities are significantly mentioned more by the control group or the MCI group. Figure 4.3 and 4.4 shows the respective entities that are mentioned more by the control group and MCI group.

Entity	CTR	MCI	PD
er_fan	0.62	0.52	0.16
el_jacket	0.52	0.40	0.23
er_vest	0.42	0.32	0.24
el_pants	0.54	0.40	0.26
m_flag	0.42	0.30	0.29
er_trunk	0.32	0.22	0.31
el_collar	0.30	0.20	0.33
er_glasses	0.40	0.20	0.50
e_custume	0.26	0.12	0.54
m_boots	0.26	0.04	0.85
cl_pants	0.12	0.00	1.00

Proportional Difference	(PD) is calculated	by (CTR-MCI)/max(CTR,MCI)

Table 4.1 Entities that Control Group mention more

Entity	CTR	MCI	PRE
background	0.06	0.20	-0.70
el_tie	0.14	0.26	-0.46
el_hat	0.30	0.40	-0.25
man_l	0.00	0.02	-1.00

Table 4.2 Entities that MCI Group mention more



Figure 4.3 Visualization

In Figure 4.3, portion highlighted in yellow is mentioned more by healthy control while the green colored portion is mentioned more by the MCI group.

4.2.3. Mention Density

To obtain information on mention coverage as well as on the amount of details the mentions are described in, I examine the density of mentions. Each metasemantic transcript consists of clusters where mentions are directly or indirectly connected by relations within a cluster and every cluster is mutually inclusive. We calculate the size of cluster (density) by counting these relations. In figure 4.6, the x-axis represents clusters in each transcript ranked from biggest to smallest, and the y-axis is the size of the cluster.



Figure 4.4 Mention Density of the two groups

The thick black lines are the average trend line. From the graphs we can observe that the control group has a more linear density function. The healthy control group distributes time fairly to describe the mentions. In the contrary, the MCI group spends much more time to describe the top two mentions.

4.2.4 Predicate Analysis

Next we look at predicates (See Annotation Guideline 2.3). Because motion predicates specifically are not statistically important in the linear regression computation, we merge all of the predicates. We sum up the number of distinct predicates that appear in each transcripts. We perform the same computation on the relations are associated with predicates.

Label	CTR	MCI	PD
Predicate	273	220	0.19
Agent	259	200	0.23
Theme	155	126	0.19
Adv	12	5	0.58
Mnr	40	30	0.25
Dir	9	5	0.44
Loc	23	24	-0.04
Tmp	2	1	0.50
Prp	4	0	1.00

Table 4.3 Predicate Analysis

The result shows that Predicate is a useful semantic feature in distinguishing the two groups. Among the relations related to Predicate : agent, theme, adv, mnr, dir, prp are important.

4.2.5 Attribute Analysis

We perform the same computation as in 4.2.4 in analyzing entity attribute.

(See Annotation Guideline chapter 3).

Label	CTR	MCI	PRE
Abstract	33	74	-0.55
Emotion	15	17	-0.12
Opinion	69	54	0.22

Table 4.4 Attribute Analysis

'Abstract' is significantly different. MCI group use much more 'Abstract' descriptions in their descriptions of mentions than the healthy control. This conveys that MCI's speech has high occurrence of ambiguity. We cannot tell what they would like to refer to even with the presence of context. 'Abstract' is actually the most important feature that can distinguish the two groups in our annotation.

4.2.6 Xmod Analysis

Label	CTR	MCI	PRE
Xmod	251	244	0.03
Certain	7	5	0.29
Emphasis	28	16	0.43
Fuzzy	30	38	-0.21
Negation	1	3	-0.67

We perform similar computation on Xmod (See Annotation Guideline 2.5)

Table 4.5 Xmod Analysis

The result shows that Emphasis (2.5.3) is used much more in healthy control group's speech. This also demonstrates that the healthy control people are very clear and assured about their descriptions or opinions. In contrast, the MCI group shows sense of vague in their expressions.

4.2.7 Nmod Analysis

At last, we look at the last class of mentions --- noun modifiers. Possesive and Size show small differences, but not as important as Abstract, Certain and Predicates. This indicates that the two groups are similar in usage of noun modifiers.

Label	CTR	MCI	PRE
Nmod	158	143	0.09
Color	221	227	-0.03
Possessive	49	56	-0.13
Size	35	48	-0.27
Quantity	82	90	-0.09

Table 4.6 Nmod Analysis

Chapter 5

Limitations and Future Works

Up until now only 100 annotated transcripts from this dataset are available for training. In the future with more annotations being finished, deep learning models can be performed, and better results can be expected. We have seen from our analysis result that the 'abstract' entity attribute plays an important role in distinguish the two groups. However, our transcripts were obtained from mere audio recording. If visual recording can be incorporated, gestures may play a part in clarifying the ambiguity, which provides explanation for the 'abstract'. In addition, Emery 2000 shows that Semantic errors reportedly are the most common and distinct language deficit because dementia patients tend to substitute target names with superordinate category names or demonstrate circumlocutory speech with impaired naming. Other reports have also described unrelated errors (Moreaud 2001). If this aspect of semantic errors are also considered, our annotation of some mentions are not accurate enough. For

example, there may exist a shared habit of depicting the 'fan' as a 'balloon' among MCI group or control group.

Future works can include combining the results we conclude from this picture description task with the results of other tasks in the transcripts to get a more comprehensive understanding of the differences that distinguish the two groups.

Bibliography

- Abbott A. Dementia: a problem for our age. *Nature*, 2011;475(7355):2–4. doi: 10.1038/475S2a.
- [2] Querbes O, Aubry F, Pariente J, Lotterie JA, Démonet JF, Duret V, Puel M, Berry I, Fort JC, Celsis P, et al. Early diagnosis of Alzheimer's disease using cortical thickness: impact of cognitive reserve. *Brain*, 2009;132(8):2036–47. doi: 10.1093/brain/awp105]
- [3] Ewers M, Sperling RA, Klunk WE, Weiner MW, Hampel H. Neuroimaging markers for the prediction and early diagnosis of Alzheimer's disease dementia. *Trends Neurosci*, 2011;34(8):430–42. doi: 10.1016/j.tins.2011.05.005.
- [4] Scheubert L, Luštrek M, Schmidt R, Repsilber D, Fuellen G. Tissue-based Alzheimer gene expression markers-comparison of multiple machine learning approaches and investigation of redundancy in small biomarker sets. BMC Bioinformatics. 2012;13(1):266. doi: 10.1186/1471-2105-13-266.
- [5] Roselli F, Tartaglione B, Federico F, Lepore V, Defazio G, Livrea P. Rate of MMSE score change in Alzheimer's disease: influence of education and vascular risk factors. *Clin Neurol Neurosurg.* 2009;111(4):327–30. doi: 10.1016/j.clineuro.2008.10.006.
- [6] Evans MC, Barnes J, Nielsen C, Kim LG, Clegg SL, Blair M, Leung KK, Douiri A, Boyes RG, Ourselin S, et al. Volume changes in Alzheimer's disease and Mild

Cognitive Impairment: cognitive associations. *Eur Radiol.* 2010;20(3):674–82. doi: 10.1007/s00330-009-1581-

- [7] Mitchell AJ. A meta-analysis of the accuracy of the Mini-Mental State Examination in the detection of dementia and Mild Cognitive Impairment. J Psychiatr Res. 2009;43(4):411–31. doi: 10.1016/j.jpsychires.2008.04.014.
- [8] Roark, B., M. Mitchell, J. P. Hosom, K. Hollingshead and J. Kaye (2011). "Spoken Language Derived Measures for Detecting Mild Cognitive Impairment." *IEEE Trans Audio Speech Lang Process* 19(7): 2081-2090.
- [9] Roark, B., M. Mitchell and K. Hollingshead (2007). Syntactic complexity measures for detecting mild cognitive impairment. Proceedings of the Workshop on BioNLP 2007: Biological, Translational, and Clinical Language Processing, Association for Computational Linguistics
- [10] Moriyama, Y., A. Yoshino, K. Yamanaka, M. Kato, T. Muramatsu and M. Mimura (2015). "The Japanese version of the Rapid Dementia Screening Test is effective compared to the clock-drawing test for detecting patients with mild Alzheimer's disease." Psychogeriatrics
- [11] König, A., A. Satt, A. Sorin, R. Hoory, O. Toledo-Ronen, A. Derreumaux, V. Manera, F. Verhey, P. Aalten and P. H. Robert (2015). "Automatic speech analysis for the assessment of patients with predementia and Alzheimer's disease." *Alzheimer's & Dementia: Diagnosis, Assessment & Disease Monitoring* 1(1): 112-124.
- [12] Tóth, L., G. Gosztolya, V. Vincze, I. Hoffmann and G. Szatlóczki (2015). Automatic detection of mild cognitive impairment from spontaneous speech using ASR, ISCA.

- [13] Aramaki, E., S. Shikata, M. Miyabe and A. Kinoshita (2016). "Vocabulary Size in Speech May Be an Early Indicator of Cognitive Impairment." *PLoS One* 11(5): e0155195.
- [14] Tanaka, H., H. Adachi, N. Ukita, T. Kudo and N. Satoshi (2016). Automatic Detection of Very Early Stage of Dementia through Spoken Dialog with Computer Avatars. *IEEE Engineering in Medicine and Biology Society*
- [15] Orimaye, S. O., J. S.-M. Wong and K. J. Golden (2014). Learning predictive linguistic features for Alzheimer's disease and related dementias using verbal utterances. Proceedings of the First Workshop on Computational Linguistics and Clinical Psychology (CLPsych).
- [16] Jarrold, W., Peintner, B., Wilkins, D., Vergryi, D., Richey, C., Gorno-Tempini, M. L., & Ogar, J. (2014). Aided diagnosis of dementia type through computerbased analysis of spontaneous speech. In Proceedings of the ACL Workshop on Computational Linguistics and Clinical Psychology : pages 27-36.
- [17] Shibata, Daisaku, et al. "Detecting Japanese patients with Alzheimer's disease based on word category frequencies." Proceedings of the Clinical Natural Language Processing Workshop (ClinicalNLP). 2016.
- [18]de ALba, Beatriz Pérez Cabello. "A contribution of Natural Language Processing to the study of semantic memory loss in patients with Alzheimer's disease." *Revista* de Lenguas para Fines Específicos 23.2 (2017): 133-156.
- [19] Periñán-Pascual, C. & Arcas Túnez, F. (2004). Meaning postulates in a lexicoconceptual knowledge base. 15th International Workshop on Databases and Expert Systems Applications, Los Alamitos (California). IEEE, 38-42.
- [20] Periñán-Pascual, C. & Arcas Túnez, F. (2005). Microconceptual-knowledge spreading in FunGramKB. In Proceedings on the 9th IASTED International

Conference on Artificial Intelligence and Soft Computing (pp. 239-244) Anaheim-Calgary-Zurich: ACTA

- [21] Periñán-Pascual, C. & Arcas Túnez, F. (2006). Reusing computer-oriented lexica as foreign-language electronic dictionaries. Anglogermánica Online 4, 69-93.
- [22] Periñán-Pascual, C. & Arcas Túnez, F. (2007). Cognitive modules of an NLP knowledge base for language understanding. *Procesamiento del Lenguaje Natural* 39, 197-204.
- [23] Periñán-Pascual, C. & Arcas Túnez, F. (2010). Ontological commitments in FunGramKB. Procesamiento del Lenguaje Natural 44, 27-34.
- [24] Grasso, L., Díaz, M.C. & Peraita, H. (2011). Deterioro de la memoria semánticoconceptual en pacientes con enfermedad de Alzheimer. Análisis cualitativo y cuantitativo de los rasgos semánticos producidos en una tarea verbal de definición categorial. *Psicogeriatría 3*(4), 159-165.
- [25] Sylvester O. Orimaye,corresponding author1 Jojo S-M. Wong,1 Karen J. Golden,2 Chee P. Wong,2 and Ireneous N. Soyiri3. Predicting probable Alzheimer's disease using linguistic deficits and biomarkers
- [26] Hernández Domínguez, Laura Elena. Computer-based characterization of language alterations throughout the Alzheimer's disease continuum. Diss. École de technologie supérieure, 2019
- [27] Guerrero, J. M., et al. "Diagnosis of Cognitive Impairment Compatible with Early Diagnosis of Alzheimer's Disease." *Methods of information in medicine* 55.01 (2016): 42-49.
- [28] Ramirez, Judith Núnez. "Identification of the Semantic Disconnection in Alzheimer's Patients Conducted by Bayesian Algorithms." Biomedical Applications Based on Natural and Artificial Computing: International Work-Conference on the

Interplay Between Natural and Artificial Computation, IWINAC 2017, Corunna, Spain, June 19-23, 2017, Proceedings. Vol. 10338. Springer, 2017.): 17-54.

- [30]Tillas A. Language as grist to the mill of cognition. Cogn Process. 2015;16(3):219–43. doi: 10.1007/s10339-015-0656-2.
- [31]Reilly J, Rodriguez AD, Lamy M, Neils-Strunjas J. Cognition, language, and clinical pathological features of non-Alzheimer's dementias: an overview. J Commun Disord. 2010;43(5):438–52. doi: 10.1016/j.jcomdis.2010.04.011.
- [32] Verma M. Howard RJ. Semantic memory and language dysfunction in early Alzheimer's disease: a review. Int J Geriatr Psychiatry. 2012 Dec;27(12):1209-17. doi: 10.1002/gps.3766. Epub 2012 Feb 1.
- [33] Altmann LJ¹, McClung JS. Effects of semantic impairment on language use in Alzheimer's disease. Semin Speech Lang. 2008 Feb;29(1):18-31. doi: 10.1055/s-2008-1061622.
- [34] Toledo CM¹, Aluísio SM², Dos Santos LB², Brucki SMD¹, Trés ES Analysis of macrolinguistic aspects of narratives from individuals with Alzheimer's disease, mild cognitive impairment, and no cognitive impairment. *Alzheimers Dement (Amst).* 2017 Sep 19;10:31-40. doi:10.1016/j.dadm.2017.08.005. eCollection 2018.
- [35] Mueller KD^{1,2}, Hermann B³, Mecollari J², Turkstra LS^{1,4}. Connected speech and language in mild cognitive impairment and Alzheimer's disease: A review of picture description tasks. J Clin Exp Neuropsychol. 2018 Nov;40(9):917-939. doi: 10.1080/13803395.2018.1446513. Epub 2018 Apr 19.
- [36] de Lira JO, Ortiz KZ, Campanha AC, Bertolucci PHF, Minett TSC.
 Microlinguistic aspects of the oral narrative in patients with Alzheimer's disease. Int Psychogeriatr. 2011;23(03):404–12. doi: 10.1017/S1041610210001092.

- [37] Fraser KC, Meltzer JA², Graham NL³, Leonard C⁴, Hirst G⁵, Black SE⁶, Rochon E. Automated classification of primary progressive aphasia subtypes from narrative speech transcripts. *Cortex.* 2014 Jun;55:43-60. doi: 10.1016/j.cortex.2012.12.006. Epub 2012 Dec 21.
- [38] <u>www.temi.com</u>
- [39] <u>www.brat.nlplab.org</u>
- [40] M Palmer, D Gildea, P Kingsbury. The proposition bank: An annotated corpus of semantic roles, *Computational linguistics*, 2005 -MIT Press
- [41] M Marcus, B Santorini, MA Marcinkiewicz. Building a large annotated corpus of English: The Penn Treebank. 1993 repository.upenn.edu
- [42] Huddleston, Rodney; Pullum, Geoffrey K. (2002). The Cambridge Grammar of the English language. Cambridge University Press.
 ISBN 0-521-43146-8.
- [43] Tesnière (1969: 128).
- [44] <u>https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Argument_(linguistics)</u>
- [45] Thomas E. Payne. Summary of Semantic Roles and Grammatical Relations, 19 October 2007
- [46] Johnson P, Vandewater L, Wilson W, Maruff P, Savage G,
 Graham P, Macaulay LS, Ellis KA, Szoeke C, Martins RN, et al.
 Genetic algorithm with logistic regression for prediction of
 progression to Alzheimer's disease. *BMC Bioinformatics*.
 2014;15(Suppl 16):11. doi: 10.1186/1471-2105-15-S16-S11.

- [47] de Lira JO, Ortiz KZ, Campanha AC, Bertolucci PHF, Minett TSC. Microlinguistic aspects of the oral narrative in patients with Alzheimer's disease. *Int Psychogeriatr.* 2011;23(03):404–12. doi: 10.1017/S1041610210001092.
- [48] Rohrer JD, Rossor MN, Warren JD. Syndromes of nonfluent primary progressive aphasia: a clinical and neurolinguistic analysis. *Neurology.* 2010 Aug 17; 75(7):603-10.
- [49] Fraser KC, Meltzer JA, Rudzicz F. Linguistic Features Identify Alzheimer's Disease in Narrative Speech. Alzheimers Dis. 2016; 49(2):407-22.
- [50] Fraser KC, Meltzer JA, Rudzicz F. Linguistic Features Identify Alzheimer's Disease in Narrative Speech. Alzheimers Dis. 2016; 49(2):407-22.